
MINUTES 
 

CITY OF DELANO 
CITY COUNCIL – REGULAR MEETING 

March 3, 2014 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Vallejo called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 1015 – 

 

 
Avenue. 

INVOCATION 
 
Mayor Vallejo asked for a moment of silence. 
 

FLAG SALUTE 
 
Councilwoman Morris led the flag salute. 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
Council members present:  Aguirre, Chavez, Morris, Pascual, Vallejo 
Council members absent:  none 
 

OFFICIALS PRESENT 
 
City Manager Reyna, City Attorney Garcia, City Clerk Kraft, Finance Director Rios, Police Chief 
DeRosia, City Engineer Dowling, Human Resources Director Zamudio 
 

PRESENTATIONS AND AWARDS 
No items 
 

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
Cornel Markham asked if the public has access to the screen for a presentation on a future agenda.  He 
stated he was told that council has to have armed security when they talk to Negro citizens.  He stated his 
questions have not been answered. 
 
Roberto Ibarra, 1815 – 

 

 Avenue asked if anything is being done about dogs and if dogs are released when 
the pound is full.  He asked if the city is going to do anything about people who wash cars on driveways. 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1) Authorization to waive the reading of any ordinance or resolution in its entirety and 
consenting to the reading of such ordinances or resolutions by title only 

 
2) Warrant Register in the amount of $1,943,258.51 

 
3) Minutes of regular City Council meeting of February 18, 2014 
 



4) Minutes of the Community Law Enforcement Liaison Board meetings of November 21, 
2013; January 9, 2014; January 16, 2014 

 
5) Approve Councilman Aguirre travel to attend the WELL (Water Education for Latino 

Leaders) Conference 2014, March 27-28 in Sacramento 
 
6) Ratify agreement for physician / physician assistant services for the Delano Modified 

Community Correctional Facility to Newport Oncology and Healthcare Medical Corp., 
Inc for January and February 2014     Agreement No. 2014-21 

 
7) Approve physician services agreement for the Delano Modified Community Correctional 

Facility with Dr. Thomas Martinelli    Agreement No. 2014-22 
 
8) Resolution No. 2014-20 of the City Council of the City of Delano approving the lease 

agreement between the City of Delano and Brough Construction, Inc. at the Delano 
Municipal Airport     Agreement No. 2014-23 

 
9) Acceptance of improvements for the new police department headquarters project and 

authorizing the filing of eleven (11) Notices of Completion related to the following 
contractors: General Construction – Wysong Construction; Site Specialty Services – 
Brough Construction Inc.; Demolition, Grading, and Asphalt Paving – Brough 
Construction Inc.; Building Concrete – Santa Clarita Concrete; Site Concrete – JTS 
Construction; Masonry – Dorfmeier Masonry, Inc; Carpentry, Wood, & Casework – 
Stolo Cabinets, Inc.; Roofing – Nations Roof West; Painting and Waterproofing – MC 
Painting; HVAC Mechanical – Sheldon Mechanical Corporation; Landscape, Irrigation, 
and Planting – Kern’s Sprinkler Landscaping, Inc 

 
10) Acceptance of improvements for the 2013 CDBG Tennis Court Rehabilitation Project 

and authorizing the filing of the Notice of Completion 
 
11) Resolution No. 2014-21 of the City Council of the City of Delano approving Agreement 

No. 5600004271 with the California Department of Corrections for the City of Delano to 
provide non-hazardous wet/dry garbage collection, removal, and disposal services for the 
North Kern State Prison from April 10, 2014 through March 31, 2017 (3 years) and 
authorizing the mayor to execute the agreement      Agreement No. 2014-24 

 
12) Resolution No. 2014-22 of the City Council of the City of Delano supporting re-

designation of the Kern County/Lancaster Recycling Market Development Zone (RMDZ) 
Program 

 
13) Approve Certificates of Acceptance for two easements for sidewalk purposes on Inyo 

Street from Smart & Final Stores 
 
14) Approval of Task Order Number 2014-03 with Quad Knopf to Agreement No. 2011-28, 

to provide engineering services related to the preparation of the city’s Wastewater 
Collection System Master Plan in the amount of $80,000     Agreement No. 2014-25 

 
Roberto Ibarra asked that items #5 and #8 be pulled from the agenda for discussion.  Councilwoman 
Morris asked that items #6 and #7 be pulled for discussion.  Councilmen Aguirre, Chavez, Pascual and 
Mayor Vallejo asked that item #10 be pulled for discussion. 
 



Moved by Councilman Chavez, seconded by Councilwoman Morris, and unanimously carried to approve 
the Consent Agenda with items 5, 6, 7, 8, and 10 pulled for discussion. 
 
Item #5)  Mr. Ibarra asked why it is called Latino Leaders and if we are getting into name calling.  Mayor 
Vallejo explained that the groups name themselves and there are many caucuses for various groups. 
 
Item #8)  Mr. Ibarra asked if the airport could be moved to the west side and noted that some of the 
airport land is being used as a parking lot.  Mayor Vallejo explained that Paramount has a lease with the 
city for use of the land. 
 
Items #6 and #7)  Councilwoman Morris asked if a physician assistant is like a nurse.  Chief DeRosia 
explained the levels of medical professionals.  He explained the three levels of care provided to the 
inmates and noted that Dr. Martinelli will be available by phone 24 hours a day. 
 
Moved by Councilman Chavez, seconded by Councilwoman Morris and unanimously carried to approve 
Consent Agenda items #5 and 8. 
 
Councilman Aguirre stated he is an employee of Delano Regional Medical Center which will serve 
inmates from the MCCF should the need arise.  He left the room due to the conflict of interest. 
 
Moved by Councilwoman Morris, seconded by Councilman Pascual and unanimously carried by all those 
present to approve Consent Agenda items #6 and #7. 
 
Councilman Aguirre returned to the meeting. 
 
Item #10)  Mayor Vallejo noted that the fence at the tennis courts had been blown down during the storm 
last week and expressed concerns regarding the work done.  Mr. Dowling explained the fence was not 
part of the contract, however he can review the specifications and damage and put the item on the next 
council agenda.  Mayor Vallejo also asked about the retention amount. 
 
Item #10 tabled until the March 17, 2014, council meeting. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
No items 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 
15) Discussion and any action regarding contract with Kern County Fire Department for fire 

protection services 
 
Mr. Garcia presented the staff report.  He reviewed what the county is charging us, what other cities pay, 
and what it would cost to operate our own fire department.  He stated the city could be ready by July 1, 
except that engines take six months.  The county is proposing a $2.6 million contract. 
 
Brian Marshall, Kern County Fire Chief, addressed the council.  He noted the concerns of the city are 
regarding money and the service has never been an issue.  County fire equipment and staff respond to 
Delano.  There are many start-up costs; fire engines take almost a year to receive after being ordered; 
special training is required to maintain fire equipment; there are mandates to follow and training to 
provide. 
 



The following spoke regarding this item:  Roberto Ibarra; Nathan Ford; Mike Miller, Kern County 
Deputy Fire Chief; Alan Montez, Vice President Kern County Fire Fighters; Cornel Markham; Gloria 
Herrera; Max Bacerra; Richard Markham; Ralph Markham; Valerie Gorospe; Suzanne Villaruz; Abraham 
(no last name given); Arthur Rodriguez 
 
There was discussion regarding negotiations, contract amounts, what other cities pay, the increase in 
charges to the city over the years, and how quickly staff need to move to establish a city department. 
 
Moved by Councilwoman Morris, seconded by Mayor Vallejo and failed to pass by the following vote to 
give the Kern County Fire Department two weeks to negotiate a fair contract.  AYES: Morris, Vallejo    
NOES: Aguirre, Chavez, Pascual 
 
Moved by Councilman Aguirre, seconded by Councilman Chavez and carried by the following vote to 
establish a city fire department and also give Kern County Fire Department until Friday, March 7, 2014, 
to make a counter proposal to provide fire protection services for $2 million.  AYES: Aguirre, Chavez, 
Pascual    NOES: Morris, Vallejo 
 
 

16) Authorize the purchase of twenty (20) 2014 Ford Utility Police Interceptors from Philpott 
Motors in the amount of $498,360 

 
Chief DeRosia presented the staff report.  He stated the vehicles will be financed over four years.  The 
city has never had a vehicle replacement program, but he and Ms. Rios are working on one now. 
 
Cornel Markham asked what happened to all the police cars that had been parked on Kensington Street.  
He was informed they have excess mileage.  They will be declared surplus and set for auction. 
 
Jonathan Aguirre thanked the council for the purchase of the new cars and stated it is a good use of tax-
payer money. 
 
Roberto Ibarra stated that to purchase twenty cars at once is expensive.  He asked if every five years five 
cars could be replaced.  He asked how many police officers we have to drive the twenty cars. 
 
 

17) Authorize AEP to outfit twenty (20) 2014 Ford Utility Police Interceptors in the amount 
of $383,176.40 

 
Chief DeRosia presented the staff report. 
 
 

18) Authorize the purchase of thirty (30) two-way patrol car unit radios from SC 
Communications in the amount of $16,148.21 

 
Chief DeRosia presented the staff report. 
 
Moved by Councilman Aguirre, seconded by Councilman Chavez and unanimously carried to authorize 
the purchase of twenty 2014 Ford Utility Police Interceptors from Philpott Motors in the amount of 
$498,360; to authorize AEP to outfit twenty 2014 Ford Utility Police Interceptors in the amount of 
$383,176.40; and to authorize the purchase of thirty two-way patrol car unit radios from SC 
Communications in the amount of $16,148.21. 
 



DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 
No items 
 

COUNCIL STATEMENTS AND REPORTS 
 
Councilman Aguirre

 

 asked if staff can develop a policy that a police officer will be replaced within thirty 
days of submitting his resignation.  Ms. Reyna stated staff can have a department report at the next 
meeting. 

Councilwoman Morris
 

 no items 

Councilman Chavez
 

 no items 

Councilman Pascual

 

 stated that he would like to have a report on grant writing.  He stated that it looks 
like electricity costs for the city will go over $2 million this year, and stated that we need to look at solar. 

Mayor Vallejo

 

  stated she would like to see a report on the next agenda regarding what we can do now 
regarding solar installation costs.  She asked for a report on the status of escrow on the Chevron Barn 
project.  Mayor Vallejo asked for information on the time frame on Dover Parkway project and a report 
on the Block H project. 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
Mr. Garcia stated staff is requesting Item #19 be pulled from the agenda. 

 
19) Conference with legal counsel: settlement authority for claim of Jose Luis Zamora 

pursuant to govt. code section 54961 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Moved by Councilman Chavez, seconded by Councilman Aguirre, and unanimously carried to adjourn 
the meeting at 8:43 p.m. 
 
______________________ 
Phyllis A. Kraft, City Clerk 


	CALL TO ORDER
	INVOCATION
	FLAG SALUTE
	ROLL CALL
	OFFICIALS PRESENT
	PRESENTATIONS AND AWARDS
	ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC
	CONSENT AGENDA
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	REGULAR AGENDA
	DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS
	COUNCIL STATEMENTS AND REPORTS
	CLOSED SESSION
	ADJOURNMENT

